
Page 1 

 

AGENDA 
 
Meeting: Tidworth Area Board 

Place: TEN, Castledown Enterprise Centre, Tidworth Rd, Ludgershall, 
Andover SP11 9QD 
 
 

Date: Monday 13 June 2022 

Time: 4.00 pm 

 
 

 
Including the Parishes of Chute, Chute Forest, Collingbourne Ducis, Collingbourne 

Kingston, Everleigh, Ludgershall, Tidworth 
 

 
The Area Board welcomes and invites contributions from members of the public. 
The chairman will try to ensure that everyone who wishes to speak will have the 

opportunity to do so. 
 

 If you have any requirements that would make your attendance at the meeting easier, please 
contact your Democratic Services Officer. 

 

Please note: This is a special meeting to appoint the Chairman & Vice-
Chairman for 2022/23 and to discuss grant applications that could not be 

taken at the meeting held on Monday 30 May 2022 
 

 
Please direct any enquiries on this Agenda to Kevin Fielding (Democratic Services 

Officer), direct line 01249 706612 or email kevin.fielding@wiltshire.gov.uk 
 

All the papers connected with this meeting are available on the Council’s website at 
www.wiltshire.gov.uk 

 
Press enquiries to Communications on direct lines (01225) 713114 / 713115. 

 

 
Wiltshire Councillors 

 
                           Cllr Chris Williams - Ludgershall North and Rural  
                             Cllr Mark Connolly - Tidworth North and West  
                     Cllr Tony Pickernell - Tidworth East & Ludgershall South 
 

 

http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/


Page 2 

 

Recording and Broadcasting Information 
 

Wiltshire Council may record this meeting for live and/or subsequent broadcast. At the 
start of the meeting, the Chairman will confirm if all or part of the meeting is being 

recorded. The images and sound recordings may also be used for training purposes 
within the Council. 

 
By submitting a statement or question for an online meeting you are consenting that you 

will be recorded presenting this, or this may be presented by an officer during the 
meeting, and will be available on the public record. The meeting may also be recorded 

by the press or members of the public. 
 

Any person or organisation choosing to film, record or broadcast any meeting of the 
Council, its Cabinet or committees is responsible for any claims or other liability resulting 

from them so doing and by choosing to film, record or broadcast proceedings they 
accept that they are required to indemnify the Council, its members and officers in 

relation to any such claims or liabilities. 
 

Details of the Council’s Guidance on the Recording and Webcasting of Meetings is 
available on request. Our privacy policy can be found here. 

 
 

Public Participation 
 

Please see the agenda list on following pages for details of deadlines for submission of 
questions and statements for this meeting. 

 
For extended details on meeting procedure, submission and scope of questions and 

other matters, please consult Part 4 of the council’s constitution. 
 

The full constitution can be found at this link. 
 

For assistance on these and other matters please contact the officer named above for 
details 

 

https://eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fcms.wiltshire.gov.uk%2FecCatDisplay.aspx%3Fsch%3Ddoc%26cat%3D14031&data=04%7C01%7Cbenjamin.fielding%40wiltshire.gov.uk%7C032dd41f93844cfa21f108d8de2a5276%7C5546e75e3be14813b0ff26651ea2fe19%7C0%7C0%7C637503620634060435%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=tgq%2B75eqKuPDwzwOo%2BRqU%2FLEEQ0ORz31mA2irGc07Mw%3D&reserved=0
https://eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fcms.wiltshire.gov.uk%2Fecsddisplayclassic.aspx%3Fname%3Dpart4rulesofprocedurecouncil%26id%3D630%26rpid%3D24804339%26path%3D13386&data=04%7C01%7Cbenjamin.fielding%40wiltshire.gov.uk%7C032dd41f93844cfa21f108d8de2a5276%7C5546e75e3be14813b0ff26651ea2fe19%7C0%7C0%7C637503620634070387%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=dYUgbzCKyoh6zLt%2BWs%2F%2B6%2BZcyNNeW%2BN%2BagqSpoOeFaY%3D&reserved=0
https://eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fcms.wiltshire.gov.uk%2Feccatdisplayclassic.aspx%3Fsch%3Ddoc%26cat%3D13386%26path%3D0&data=04%7C01%7Cbenjamin.fielding%40wiltshire.gov.uk%7C032dd41f93844cfa21f108d8de2a5276%7C5546e75e3be14813b0ff26651ea2fe19%7C0%7C0%7C637503620634070387%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=VAosAsVP2frvb%2FDFxP34NHzWIUH60iC2lObaISYA3Pk%3D&reserved=0


Page 3 

 

Items to be considered Time 

1   Election of Tidworth Area Board Chairman - 2022/23  
 

4:00pm 

2   Election of Tidworth Area Board Vice-Chairman - 2022/23  
 

 

3   Chairman's Announcements, Welcome and Introductions  
 

 

4   Appointment of Lead Members to Outside Bodies & Working 
Groups (Pages 1 - 8) 

 

  Local Highway and Footway Improvement Group (LHFIG)   
 

 Tidworth Community Area Partnership  
 

 Tidworth Leisure Centre Executive Committee 
  

 

5   Deciding on Area Board priorities for 2022/23 (Pages 9 - 18)  

 Area Boards are invited to appoint lead Councillor(s) 
representatives for each of the priority themes that they have 
selected. The following guiding principles are in place for 
Councillors who take a role as an Area Board lead for a priority 
theme:  

 To be the main Area Board point of contact for local officers, 

councillors and residents within their respective lead area 

 

 To attend (and usually take the role as chair) relevant 

working groups of the area board  

 

 To work collaboratively and cooperatively with relevant local 

partners, community groups, volunteers and outside bodies 

 

 To provide regular updates back to the area board in relation 

to their lead area, including providing feedback on the 

success or limitations of previously funded Area Board grants 

 

 To consider any funding applications diligently and 

democratically, ensuring due process is undertaken.  

 

 To in consultation with the local Councillor, monitor feedback 

for those grant applications that relate to the local priority the 

lead Councillor has responsibility for, ensuring that relevant 

 



Page 4 

 

feedback on progress and outcomes is provided to the Area 

Board 

 

 
Recommendations 
 

 The area board is asked to acknowledge the progress update 

from the 2021/22 local priorities work.  

 

 The area board is asked to consider this report along with its 

appendices and decide upon the priorities it wishes to focus on 

in the coming year. 

 

 The area board is asked to appoint a councillor lead for each of 

the selected priorities.   

 

 The area board is asked to appoint any required working groups 

in relation to each priority where a suitable existing externally 

operated groups is not already in place.  

 

6   Apologies for Absence  
 

 

7   Declarations of Interest   

 To receive any declarations of disclosable interests or dispensations 
granted by the Standards Committee 
 

 

8   Community Area Grants   

 To determine applications for Community Area Grants which the 
Area Board were unable to discuss at the meeting held on Monday 
30 May 2022 
 

 

9   Close  5:00pm 

 



 

Tidworth Area Board 
30 May 2022 
 

Appointment of Area Board Lead Councillors 
 

1. Purpose of the Report 
 
1.1. To appoint Councillor representatives for the Area Board. This will include appointing 

to Outside Bodies and to reconstitute and appoint to Working Groups for the year 
2022/23 

 
2. Background 
 
2.1. Area Boards are invited to appoint Councillors to be their respective lead for particular 

Outside Bodies or Non-Priority Working Groups. The following guiding principles are 
in place for Councillors who take a role on an Outside body or Non-Priority Working 
Group:  
 

 To be the main Area Board point of contact for local Officers within their respective 
area 

 To attend (and often Chair) relevant working groups of the Area Board  

 To work collaboratively with relevant local partners and community groups  

 To provide regular updates back to the Area Board in relation to their 
Group/Outside-Body including providing feedback on the success or limitations of 
previously funded Area Board grants (if applicable)  

 
2.2. The Area Board is invited to appoint Councillor Lead representatives to the Outside 

Bodies listed at Appendix A.  These appointments will continue for the duration of 
Councillors’ terms of office, and will be reviewed annually, unless the Board 
determines otherwise. 
 

2.3. The Area Board is also invited to reconstitute or create new Non-Priority Working 
Groups set out in Appendix B, with the Terms of Reference (if applicable) set out at 
Appendix D, and to make appointments to these groups.   

 
2.4. Similarly, the Area Board is invited to appoint a named Older Persons and Carer 

Champion to work with the Area Board and Health and Wellbeing Group for 2022/23 
(if applicable). 

 
3. Main Considerations 
 
3.1. Local Highways and Footpath Improvement Group (LHFIG) has replaced Community 

Area Transport Groups (CATGs), which will continue to operate as informal working 
groups making recommendations to the Area Board for approval.  Terms of 
Reference are set out in Appendix C for information.  
  

 

Page 1

Agenda Item 4



 

 
 

3.2. Where a Non-Priority Working group is required, the exact purpose should be set out and 
agreed by the Board. 

 
3.3. A key role within some Health and Wellbeing Group’s is that of a local ‘Champion’ 

who works with the Area Board to address priorities for older people and carers, 
further details on this role can be obtained on request from the officer named on this 
report.  
 

4. Financial and Resource Implications 
 
4.1. None. 
 
5. Legal Implications 

 
5.1. Some appointments carry responsibilities and duties, for example, those which 

involve becoming a trustee.  Councillors are advised to seek advice on individual 
appointments if required. Protocol 3 of the Council’s Constitution sets out Guidance to 
Members on Outside Bodies. 
 

6.    Safeguarding Implications 
 
6.1   Processes are in place to ensure Disclosure and Barring Service (DBS) checks        
 are undertaken as appropriate.      

 
 

7. Environmental Impact of the Proposals 
 

7.1 None. 
 

8. Equality and Diversity Implications 
 

8.1 None. 
 
9. Delegation 

 
9.1 By convention, appointments to Outside Bodies which operate within the boundary of 

a community area are made by the relevant Area Board. 
 
9.2 The appointment of Councillors and other representatives to Non-Priority working 

groups operating under the Area Board is a matter for the Area Board to determine. 
 
10. Recommendation 
 
10.1 The Area Board is requested to: 
 

Page 2

http://cms.wiltshire.gov.uk/ecSDDisplay.aspx?NAME=Protocol%203%20-%20Guidance%20to%20Members%20on%20Outside%20Bodies&ID=646&RPID=14325037


 

a. Appoint Members as Lead representatives to Outside Bodies as set out at 
Appendix A; 
 

b. Agree to reconstitute and appoint to AB Non-Priority Working Group(s) as set out 
in Appendix B; and 

 
c. To note the Terms of Reference for the LHFIG as set out in Appendix C. 

 
d. To agree the Terms of Reference for any Non-Priority Working Group(s), as set 

out in Appendix D.  
 

 

 
Lisa Alexander, Senior Democratic Services Officer 
 
Appendices:  
 
Appendix A – Appointment to Outside Bodies  
Appendix B – Appointment of Members to Non-Priority Working Groups 
Appendix C – LHFIG Terms of Reference  
Appendix D – Terms of Reference for Working Group(s) 
 
 
Unpublished background documents relied upon in the preparation of this report 
 
None. 
 
 

 
 
 
  
 

Page 3





Appendix A  
 

 
 
 

Tidworth Area Board  
Appendix A 

 
Appointments of Lead Members to Outside Bodies 2022/23 
 

Outside Body 

 
Councillor Representative 

Tidworth Community Area Partnership 

 
Cllr Chris Williams 
 

 
Tidworth Leisure Centre Executive Committee  
 

 
Cllr Chris Williams 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 5





Appendix B 
 Appendix  

 
Tidworth Area Board 

Appendix B 
Appointments of Area Board Councillors 
 
To Non-Priority Working Groups of the Board:  

 

 
Local Highways & Footway Improvement Group (LHFIG) 
 
Councillor Mark Connolly 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 7





 

 

Tidworth Area Board 

 
May 2022 
 

 
 

Annual Review of Local Priorities  
 
1. Purpose of the Report 

 
I. To report on progress made in addressing the area board priorities selected for 

2021/22 
II. To consider any new evidence or information that will help inform the area board 

in selecting its priorities for 2022/23 
III. To highlight potential priorities for the area board to consider for 2022/23 
IV. To inform the area board of the broad mechanism for delivering these priorities 

including where appropriate leads, working groups and allocating funding. 
 

2. Introduction 
 

This report has been written by the Community Engagement Manager in consultation with 
the area board Councillors. It is provided to help celebrate the success so far and support 
the area board in setting their priorities for the coming year.  
 
In early 2021, the Community Engagement Manager combined data from the community 
area “Joint Strategic Needs Assessment” (JSNA) with other sources of data and additional 
local intelligence. This was used to produce a community area status report that 
highlighted where further local improvements may be required. In May 2021, this report 
was shared with the area boards to help inform which priorities it should focus its energy 
and resources upon.  
 
Given the challenging financial environment both nationally and locally, area boards are 
encouraged to continue to develop this evidence led approach to its work, so that they can 
have the greatest impact on those living in our communities. This includes: 

 Selecting priorities and directing resources to where there is the greatest need and 

where the area board can make a tangible contribution 

 Being clear on what the area board is trying to achieve and the mechanism for 

doing so 

 Regularly reviewing and communicating progress against the chosen priorities. 

3. Progress on 2021/22 area board priorities 
 

The area board working with its partners and the wider community has focussed its 
attention over the past year on the priority areas below. Appendix A summarises the 
progress that has been made so far but some of the key achievements include: 

Page 9

Agenda Item 5



 

 
i. Positive activities for young people: The rural youth project led by Community First 

has been established and is working to support activities throughout the area 

including the establishment of a new youth offer in Ludgershall. As well as some 

one-off events  run by Wiltshire Creative, we are also working young people who 

need extra support through the Youth Adventure Trust and with Wellington 

Academy / Tedworth Equestrian. The Tidworth Youth Club started in September 

2021 and has proved to be successful. 

ii. Climate Change: There has been engagement locally with the “Wiltshire Climate 

Change Strategy” and “Green and Blue Infrastructural Strategy”, both of which have 

now been adopted. Through local engagement with the community via a survey 

and climate change meeting, a new group has been established to focus upon local 

initiatives and sharing information. 

iii. Health and wellbeing: Several projects have been supported including a Nepalese 

older women’s Mosaic group, arts group and cookery classes for carers. We have 

assisted with the challenges of 2021/22 including COVID-19, changes in provision 

for older people as well as supporting those coming from Afghanistan and Ukraine. 

iv. Community Resilience: Funding provided to support projects aimed at older and 

vulnerable people in addition to 6 local events for the Queen’s Platinum Jubilee with 

an emphasis upon increasing the confidence of people to socialise again. Work has 

continued to strengthen military / Civilian integration and the Paths for All walking 

project has continued in partnership with Stonehenge Area Board 

 
4. The context for agreeing new area board priorities. 

 
The selection of area board priorities should be undertaken using both the evidence 
available to us, as well as the context within which we are operating. Both are 
continually changing, and the following is provided to help inform the area board’s 
decision. 
 
i. The Joint Strategic Needs Analysis was collated 2 years ago in 2020 and although 

it used the latest information available at the time, some of it is now out of date. 

This is partly due the significant impact COVID-19 has had on issues such as debt, 

the economy and mental health as well as the release of more up to date data that 

was not previously available. Two news sources of data for Wiltshire that have 

analysed data during COVID and subsequent start of the recovery are available. 

These are  

 Wiltshire Citizens Advice Annual Report 

 Wiltshire Intelligence Bringing Evidence Together (JSNA Update) 

 

For the Tidworth Community Area, this includes 

Page 10

https://www.citizensadvicewiltshire.org.uk/index.php?option=com_content&view=article&id=4&Itemid=254
https://www.wiltshireintelligence.org.uk/recovery-jsna-landing-page/


 

 The Wiltshire Climate Strategy and Green and Blue Infrastructure Strategy 

have both now been adopted and Wiltshire Council have committed 

themselves to being carbon neutral by 2030. The challenge is to consider 

what local actions we can undertake 

 Inflation is very high with fuel costs doubling or more in price. This is hitting 

the poorer families and the elderly / vulnerable the most. 

 Research carried out by Community First who spoke to over 100 young 

people and their families identified a need to  improve youth provision  

 

ii. The 2021/22 area board priorities were selected whilst in the middle of the COVID-

19 pandemic. The demands of this public health crisis demonstrated the 

importance of partnership working with some services struggling to cope and 

many of our community groups and organisations unable to operate. The focus of 

our time and resources has been upon coming together and supporting the 

vulnerable within our communities. As we now emerge from the pandemic, the 

focus is shifting away from this reactive response and onto the rebuilding of our 

communities. In particular, the evidence suggests that  

 Some organisations are finding it difficult to find volunteers with some not 

returning due to anxiety over COVID-19 

 The demand upon our health services including the number of COVID 

related cases continues to be high 

 Many people, especially the older and more vulnerable have lost 

confidence and are reluctant to socialise again. 

 There has been an increase in poor mental health and depression resulting 

from the pandemic. Some young people have been particularly affected  

 
iii. The last 2 years has seen a change in the way that people communicate, 

especially with the shift to more permanent home and remote working. This has 

allowed a new approach that includes the ability to be more inclusive and a 

reduction in the need to travel. The area board is encouraged to embrace these 

opportunities but also mitigate against any local impact upon our communities, 

especially as it is very rural and there are many who do not have access to 

transport or/and do not use digital forms of communication 

 
iv. Wiltshire Council has released its new business plan, outlining its strategy for 

2022-2032. It focusses upon the 4 themes of “Empowering People”, “a Resilient 

Society”, “a Thriving Economy” and “a Sustainable Environment”. In addition, 

Wiltshire Council on the 1st February 2022, approved both the Wiltshire Climate 

Strategy and Wiltshire’s Natural Environment Plan. The area board should be 

aware of these plans and seek to help deliver them at a local level 

 

Page 11

https://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/article/1004/Climate-strategy
https://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/article/3853/Green-and-blue-infrastructure
https://cms.wiltshire.gov.uk/documents/s198937/Draft%20Business%20Plan%2022.pdf
https://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/media/7020/Wiltshire-Council-Draft-Climate-Strategy-September-2021/pdf/Wiltshire_Council_Draft_Climate_Strategy_Sept21.pdf?m=637655080289230000
https://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/media/7020/Wiltshire-Council-Draft-Climate-Strategy-September-2021/pdf/Wiltshire_Council_Draft_Climate_Strategy_Sept21.pdf?m=637655080289230000
https://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/media/6463/GBI-Strategy-2021-08/pdf/GBI_Strategy_2021-081.pdf?m=637654987571530000


 

v. There have been some important changes locally that offer both challenges and 

opportunities. These include: 

 LtCol Nick Turner retired at the end of March 2022 as the local community 

officer linking together the military and civilian work at the local level. There 

are no immediate plans to replace him 

 Tidworth Town Council have begun work on their new Civic Centre 

 Ludgershall Town Council have moved to larger offices 

 The former Londis Shop is being upgraded and repurposed which will 

include a dedicated youth space as well as a place for worship 

 
5. Agreeing and delivering priorities for 2022/23 

 
The Community Engagement Manager in consultation with the chairman of the area 
board has provided a list of possible priorities for consideration. These can be found 
in appendix B. The area board should carefully consider how many priorities it can 
work on at any one time and ensure that they are meaningful for their local area. As 
a guide, it is recommended that where an area board has 4 or less councillors, no 
more than 4 priorities are selected at any one time. Larger boards can select up to 5 
if they believe that they have the capacity to deliver on them. Area Boards can at any 
time select, review or amend their priorities in order that they remain relevant and 
linked to current needs 
 
As well as being evidence led, priorities should be selected where the area board 
believes that it can realistically make a positive impact upon them. To aid the delivery 
of the chosen priorities, the Community Engagement Manager will support the area 
board councillors including in the creation and management of an action plan. This 
plan will include clearly defined, manageable and measurable outcomes so that  what 
is trying to be achieved is fully understood and  will in turn facilitate the annual review 
of delivery on local priorities. 
 
The key mechanism for delivery is to support the local community to use their own 
experiences, abilities and passions so that they are empowered to shape and deliver 
positive change. To achieve this the area board may wish to consider allocating 
funding where money is required to help deliver the required aims. The area board 
may also look to set up a local working group to lead on the delivery of a priority, 
especially where no suitable group already exists.  
 
It is recommended that for each priority selected, an area board councillor takes 
responsibility for overseeing its delivery and reporting back to the area board on 
progress. The Community Engagement Manager will support the area board 
councillors in undertaking this work. 
 
It is also acknowledged that as priorities were selected less than a year ago, progress 
on some will be limited and the area board may decide it wishes to continue to focus 
upon them rather than select new ones. 

Page 12



 

 
6. Area Board Lead Councillor Role Description 
 

Area Boards are invited to appoint lead Councillor(s) representatives for each of the 
priority themes that they have selected. The following guiding principles are in place for 
Councillors who take a role as an Area Board lead for a priority theme:  

 To be the main Area Board point of contact for local officers, councillors and 

residents within their respective lead area 

 To attend (and usually take the role as chair) relevant working groups of the area 

board  

 To work collaboratively and cooperatively with relevant local partners, community 

groups, volunteers and outside bodies 

 To provide regular updates back to the area board in relation to their lead area, 

including providing feedback on the success or limitations of previously funded 

Area Board grants 

 To consider any funding applications diligently and democratically, ensuring due 

process is undertaken.  

 To in consultation with the local Councillor, monitor feedback for those grant 

applications that relate to the local priority the lead Councillor has responsibility 

for, ensuring that relevant feedback on progress and outcomes is provided to the 

Area Board 

 
7. Recommendations 

 
I. The area board is asked to acknowledge the progress update from the 2021/22 

local priorities work.  

II. The area board is asked to consider this report along with its appendices and 

decide upon the priorities it wishes to focus on in the coming year. 

III. The area board is asked to appoint a councillor lead for each of the selected 

priorities.   

IV. The area board is asked to appoint any required working groups in relation to each 

priority where a suitable existing externally operated groups is not already in place.  

 
 
Report Author: <Richard Rogers> Community Engagement Manager 
E-Mail: Richard.Rogers@wiltshire.gov.uk 
  

Page 13

mailto:xxxxxx@wiltshire.gov.uk


 

APPENDIX A - Summary of progress made against priorities for 2021/22 
 

 
1. Positive Activities for Young People 

 
Actions: 

 
I. The AWS have been supported financially to provide activities for young people that are 

open to military and civilians alike. 
II. Tidworth Youth Club started in September 21 and has a good weekly turnout of about 25 

young people 
III. The AWS using area board funding have run pop up events including in Tidworth in 

summer 2021. Further funding has been  provided allowing them to develop this offer 
further. Equipment provided including silent disco, barbecue, sound and tents are 
available for all community groups in the area to borrow. 

IV. Wellington Academy have become part of the Wiltshire Youth Council allowing them to 
share local need and influence where local resources are targeted. 

V. The Rural Youth Project has been established and phase 1 completed in conjunction with 
4 other area boards. This included talking to over 120 young people and families, referring 
young people to activities such as SPLASH and providing support for youth projects. A 
particular emphasis has been upon re-establishing a youth offer in Ludgershall and an 
open event was held in April for young people and their parents. 

VI. Rural Youth Project engagement event held in March which helped inform stakeholders 
of the project and encourage support for further years. 

VII. The Area Board has helped fund the extension of Ludgershall skate park and the building 
of Tidworth skate park. 

VIII. The Area Board has worked with Tedworth Equestrian and Wellington Academy to 
provide equine experience for young people who need additional support 

IX. Youth Adventure Trust has been financed by the Area Board to provide support over 3 
years for young people identified as needing additional help 

X. Creative Wiltshire were funded to run arts events for young people during summer 2021 
in Tidworth  

XI. The photographic project that worked with young people identified by the youth offending 
team and gave them both confidence and skills was successfully completed 

 
Related funding: 

Who What How Much 

   

TCAP Ludgershall Boys and Youth 
Centre improvements 

£900 + 
£1,745 

Ludgershall Town Council Skatepark extension £9,439 

Tidworth Town Council Skatepark £11,439 

Area Board Initiative Develop Ludgershall Youth 
Offer 

£5,000 

AWS Zouch Youth Group £5,000 

Area Board Initiative Rural Youth Project year 2 £5,000 

AWS Extension of Pop-Ups £2,000 

Youth Adventure Trust Support disadvantaged 
young people 

£2,192 

AWS Kitting out of new youth hall £5,000 

2. Climate Change 

Page 14



 

 
Actions: 

 
I. The Area Board promoted the draft Climate Change Strategy and Green & Blue 

Infrastructure Strategy and encouraged local involvement and feedback 
II. Assistance has been given in running Wiltshire Climate Change meetings including those 

for Parish Councils and other stakeholders to raise awareness of what the issues are and 
how we can work in co-production together.  

III. The Area Board carried out a survey to identify local people interested in addressing 
climate change locally. About 30 people said they were very keen to get involved. 

IV. Hosted special event to discuss climate change and local action resulting in a new 
community environmental group being formed 

V. Paths for All project has been restarted in conjunction with Stonehenge area and funding 
put aside to support small projects. 

 
Related funding: 

Who What How Much 

   

Friends of Chute Restoring pond £700 

Area Board initiative To support improvements to 
rights of way and promote the 
use of them 

£5,000 

 
 
3. Health and Wellbeing 
 
Actions: 

I. Groups that had been stopped due to COVID such as the Ludgershall memory café and 
friends of Ludgershall have restarted 

II. Creative Wiltshire was funded to run one off events for older people including one held in 
Ludgershall Church in summer 21. 

III. ABC cookery classes have been held for carers and  the social prescribers at the surgery 
were supported to start other offers including allotments. 

IV. The Army Welfare Service were supported to establish a mosaic group for older Nepalese 
women as well as an arts and mindfulness group for all adults 

V. All schools in the community area have been taking part in the Healthy Schools project 
supported by the Area Board. They will complete in May 2022. 

 
 
Related funding: 

Who What How Much 

   

Area Board Initiative Queen’s Platinum Jubilee 
Celebrations 

£2,000 

Community Support 
Tidworth 

Art & Mindfulness sessions £5,000 

Carers Support ABC cookery classes for 
carers 

£2,554 

Alzheimer’s Support Movement for the Mind £1,381 

AWS Elderly Nepalese Women 
Mosaic project 

£995 

Page 15



 

Men’s Shed Health and safety work £797 

 
 
 
4. Community Resilience 
 
Actions: 

I. The Area Board has worked with the MOD to strengthen relationships and maximise 
opportunities to work together including rationalising meetings and establishing a new MCI 
mechanism now that LtCol Nick Turner has left. 

II. Funding for community groups was promoted with all the 2021/22 budgets allocated locally 
III. 5 events have been supported throughout the whole area to put on activities for local 

platinum jubilee community celebrations aimed especially at including the older people and 
those who are isolated, lonely or vulnerable. 

IV. Promoted the need for more link drivers due to increase in demand and fewer returning 
after COVID. They provide a crucial service in transporting people to hospital and other 
important appointments 

V. Re-established the health and wellbeing group for the community area 
VI. Assistance provided to support those affected by COVID-19, refugees from Afghanistan 

and Ukraine as well as the changes in funding for older people. 
 
 
 
Related funding: 

Who What How Much 

   

Ludgershall Sports Club New mower £1,250 

Collingbourne Ducis PC Bus shelter £3,444 

 
Total grant funding  allocated  to all projects during 2021/22 is £57,200  

Page 16



 

APPENDIX B – Suggested priorities for 2022/23 
 
The following are some possible priorities for the area board to consider for the coming year 
 

Potential Priority Key objectives Additional comments, proposed lead 
Councillor and delivery working 
group 

   

Support the provision of 
positive activities for 
young people 

 Develop a youth 
offer in Ludgershall 

 Ensure equal access 
to positive activities  

This will  include working closely with the 
AWS and helping promote their offers 
 
Lead – Cllr Anthony Pickernell 

Protect the environment 
and reduce carbon 
footprint 

 To build on the work 
done locally and 
Wiltshire wide to 
promote local 
initiatives, help link 
people together and 
reduce the local 
carbon footprint. 

 To promote and 
encourage greener 
forms of transport 
including walking 

Work closely with Tidworth Town 
Council 
 
Lead – Cllr Mark Connolly 
 
The Area Board has helped set up an 
environment group that it will support 

Health and wellbeing  To support those 
whose mental or 
physical health is 
suffering including 
those affected by 
COVID and current 
economic 
challenges 

 To Support minority 
groups and those 
who have settled in 
the area from 
overseas 

Lead – Cllr Christopher Williams 
 
The health and wellbeing group that also 
encompasses most other community 
resilience areas will be the working 
group 

 

 

Page 17





10/05/2022, 15:25 Area Board Grants - Wiltshire Council

https://manage.wiltshire.gov.uk/areaboardgrants/AreaboardMeetings/MeetingReport/158 1/3

Report To Tidworth Area Board

Date of Meeting Monday, 30 May 2022

Title of Report Tidworth Area Grant Report




Purpose of the Report
To provide detail of the grant applications made to the Tidworth Area Board.
These could include; community area grants, health
and wellbeing, young persons grants and Area Board initiatives.
To document any recommendations provided through sub groups.




Area Board Current Financial Position
Community Area
Grants

Young People Health and Wellbeing

Awarded To Date

Current Balance

Balance if all grants are agreed based on
recommendations




Grant Funding Application Summary
Application
Reference

Grant Type Applicant Project Total
Cost

Requested

ABG548 Community Area
Grant

Collingbourne Pre school Collingbourne Pre school
Outdoor classroom

£3505.90 £1752.95

Project Summary:

We are aiming to build an all weather outdoor classroom for our pre school children to benefit from all year round.

ABG549 Community Area
Grant

THEFILMPLACE
Collingbourne Ducis

THEFILMPLACE community film
show activity

£8769.60 £2000.00

Project Summary:

THEFILMPLACE has been using Moviola to put on film shows in Collingbourne Ducis village hall 7 or 8 times a year for the
residents of the surrounding villages. This has been running for the past 5 years during which we have had average
attendances between 40 to 60 people at each show with our first show topping 130 people. The evening , while it is about
showing a current film, is about creating a community event giving local people the chance to have a convivial evening out
with minimum effort and travel. Keeping entrance cost, £6 per ticket including free raffle, and cost of refreshments as low
as possible it has become difficult to break even with the rising charges from Moviola. We need to procure our own
projection and sound equipment with the relevant Screening Licence to be an independent community film show provider.
Not only will this allow us to continue our community film evenings but expand to additional shows for school, local youth
and less main stream films.

Opening Balance For   2022/2023 £ 16,353.00 £ 16,710.00 £ 7,700.00

£ 0.00 £ 0.00 £ 0.00

£ 16,353.00 £ 16,710.00 £ 7,700.00

£ 11,287.55 £ 15,560.41 £ 7,700.00

Page 19

Agenda Item 8

https://manage.wiltshire.gov.uk/areaboardgrants/Grant/Application/548
https://manage.wiltshire.gov.uk/areaboardgrants/Grant/Application/549


10/05/2022, 15:25 Area Board Grants - Wiltshire Council

https://manage.wiltshire.gov.uk/areaboardgrants/AreaboardMeetings/MeetingReport/158 2/3

Application
Reference

Grant Type Applicant Project Total
Cost

Requested

ABG647 Community Area
Grant

AWS Community Support
Tidworth

Forest school for all £2625.00 £1312.50

Project Summary:

We would like to use our Tidworth community garden as a community location where people can attend 2 affordable forest
school sessions for all ages, aimed at reducing anxiety, addressing loneliness, and raising confidence, informal education
opportunities and improved mental health. The community garden is starting to become a hub for people after lock down
and many more people are interested. We need to have qualified, committed people to be able to successfully manage the
garden as many forces families do not have much knowledge in general gardening. AWS would like to work in partnership
with Worth the Earth to reach out to people who need more help to gently become part of society again and for them to
have autonomy of their community garden with expertise guidance. We aim to run 2 sessions a week to offer people with
identified needs, who would potentially benefit from the project.

ABG562 Youth Grant Tidworth Town Football
Club

Tidworth Town FC Pitch Marking £19890.89 £1149.59

Project Summary:

As part of Tidworth Town FC new Charitable Incorporate Organisation status, we have started to improve the Club for all
our current and future members, part of this improvement project is looking to ensure our groundsman has sufficient
equipment to maintain the standard of the pitches. We have purchased new grass cutting machinery but require a new line
marker to ensure the pitches are visible allowing the players and officials to participate in football matches.




1. Background
Area Boards have authority to approve funding under powers delegated to them. Under the Scheme of Delegation Area Boards must
adhere to the Area Board Funding and Grants Criteria.
This document is available on the council’s website.



Three funding streams are available to the Area Board, each with an annually awarded amount. These funding streams are as follows:

Community Area Grants (capital)
Young People (revenue)
Health and Wellbeing (revenue)

The Area Board will be advised of the funding available prior to their first meeting of each financial year.




2. Main Considerations
2.1. Councillors need to be satisfied that the applications meet the requirements as set out in the Area Board Funding and Grants
Criteria and that the health and wellbeing and young persons funding guidelines have been adhered to.



2.2. Councillors must ensure that the distribution of funding is in accordance with the Scheme of Delegation to Area Boards.



2.3. Councillors need to consider any recommendations made by sub groups of the Area Boards.




3. Environmental & Community Implications
Grant funding will contribute to the continuance and/or improvement of cultural, social and community activity and
wellbeing in the
community area, the extent of which will be dependent upon the individual project.




4. Financial Implications
Councillors must ensure that the Area Board has sufficient funding available to cover the grants awarded.




5. Legal Implications
There are no specific legal implications related to this report.




6. Human Resources Implications
Page 20

https://manage.wiltshire.gov.uk/areaboardgrants/Grant/Application/647
https://manage.wiltshire.gov.uk/areaboardgrants/Grant/Application/562


10/05/2022, 15:25 Area Board Grants - Wiltshire Council

https://manage.wiltshire.gov.uk/areaboardgrants/AreaboardMeetings/MeetingReport/158 3/3

There are no specific human resources implications related to this report.




7. Equality and Inclusion Implications
Community Area Boards must fully consider the equality impacts of their decisions in order to meet the Council’s Public Sector Equality
Duty.



Community Area Grants will give local community and voluntary groups, Town and Parish Council’s equal opportunity to receive funding
towards
community based projects and schemes where they meet the funding criteria.




8. Safeguarding Implications
The Area Board has ensured that the necessary policies and procedures are in place to safeguard children, young people and vulnerable
adults.



No unpublished documents have been relied upon in the preparation of this report.




Report Author
Richard Rogers, Community Engagement Manager, Richard.Rogers@wiltshire.gov.uk

Page 21

mailto:Richard.Rogers@wiltshire.gov.uk



	Agenda
	4 Appointment of Lead Members to Outside Bodies & Working Groups
	Appendix.A_OB.List
	Appendix.B_Non-Priority

	5 Deciding on Area Board priorities for 2022/23
	8 Community Area Grants

